
Lincoln, Fort Rice, Riverview, Florence Lake, Burnt Creek, Canfield, Lyman, & Phoenix 
Unorganized Townships 

 
Burleigh County Commission Meeting Agenda 

Tom Baker Meeting Room, City/County Office Building, 221 N 5th St, Bismarck 

 

Attend in Person | Watch live on Government Access Channels 2 or 602 | Listen to Radio Access 102.5 FM |  
Stream on freetv.org or Dakota Media Access Facebook Live | Replay later from freetv.org 

June 17, 2024 
 
5:00 PM  
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance presented by Chaplain. 

 
COUNTY COMMISSION 
 
1. Meeting called to order by the Chairman of the Board. 

2. Roll call of members. 

3. Approval of Agenda. 

4. Consideration and approval of the May 31st, 2024, special meeting minutes and June 3rd, 

2024, meeting minutes and bills. 

5. Consent Agenda: 
a. Abatements. 
b. Check replacement. 
c. Applications for licenses, raffles, and special events permits. 

 

6. U.S Fish and Wildlife Service: 

a. Potential land purchase within the county.  

7. County Planning Director Flanagan: 

a. Appeal of complaint. 

b. Fleck Subdivision. 

c. Riverside 3rd Subdivision.  

d. Peaceful View final plat.  

 

8. Metropolitan Planning Organization Executive Director Rachel Lukaszewski: 

a. Request to Consider the 2024 Urban Functional Classification System. 
 

9. County Engineer Hall: 

a. Underground Easement Request.  

https://dakotamediaaccess.org/
https://www.facebook.com/dakotamediaaccess
https://dakotamediaaccess.org/


 

10. County Finance Director Jacobs: 

a. Detention Center sales tax update. 

b. Detention Center capital improvement and maintenance fund discussion.  

 

11. Auditor/Treasurer Splonskowski: 

a. Crossroads Tavern Liquor License application.  

 

12. Other business. 

13. Adjourn. 

 

COUNTY WEED BOARD 
1. Meeting called to order by the Chairman of the Board. 

2. Roll call of members. 

3. Consideration of Herbicide bid, and Chemical applicator bid results.  

4. Other business. 

5. Adjourn. 

 
The next regularly scheduled Commission meeting will be on July 1st, 2024.  

 
Mark Splonskowski 
Burleigh County Auditor/Treasurer 
 
 
 
 



 

BURLEIGH COUNTY COMMISSION 
MEETING 

MAY 31ST, 2024 

 

10:00 AM 

Vice-Chairman Bakken called the special meeting of the Burleigh County Commission to order. 

Roll call of the members: Commissioners Woodcox, Munson, Schwab, and Bakken were present; 
Chairman Bitner was absent. 

Sheriff Leben presented to the Commission a review of the Crossroads Tavern Liquor License renewal, 
with a recommendation to a non-renewal of said liquor license. Leben prefaced with a statement that there 
has never been an instance – at least in his time with the Sheriff’s department – where the sheriff has come 
before the county commission with a such a recommendation, and that there is no state or county playbook 
for what’s acceptable/not acceptable for handling with such a scenario. 

Following the issuing of the second liquor license to Crossroads Tavern in June 2021, Leben explained that 
incidents and activity at the Crossroads started to ramp up during 2022 to the point that it drew the attention 
of the Sheriff’s department. In 2023 incidents continued to rise, with Leben coming forward to the 
Commission to bring to their attention the situation up at the tavern. In 2024, serious incidents continued, 
including a recent incident where the bouncers at the Crossroads appeared intoxicated. Jake Miller, owner 
of the Crossroads Tavern, was receptive to concerns voiced by the Sheriff’s Department and the County 
Commission, even promising to institute business changes & new safety measures to deter further 
incidents. However, after continued problems Leben made the decision to conduct undercover operations 
at the Crossroads in 2023; reports for the most part did not raise any causes for concern. 

The owners of Crossroads were then discussed, Jake Miller along with his co-owner & wife Jocelyn Miller. 
In January 2024, Jocelyn was charged with domestic violence and later plead to a reduced charge in May. 
In February 2024, Jake was charged with driving under renovation and possessing cocaine, as well as duty 
upon striking. In March 2024, Jake is charged with a DUI, possession of cocaine, and refusal to test. In 
terms of whether the Crossroads qualifies for a liquor license renewal, Leben explained that its application 
was incomplete due to it lacking a township approval letter, and further commented that Mary Rennich, 
chairman of Hay Creek township, reached out to him and explained that she and the township were 
concerned and uncomfortable with renewing the license. Leben further elaborated that the application is 
inaccurate in that it didn’t list all of Jake’s charges and downplayed the severity of some charges. As to 
whether the Crossroads should have for a liquor license renewal, Leben states that a decision here should 
be made with the best interests of Burleigh County in mind. Additionally, with corroborating statements 
made by Deputy Trevor Pollard, Leben also summarized that the Sheriff’s department uncovered on Jake 
Miller’s cellphone evidence of purchasing narcotics (using his business to help facilitate these actions) and 
attempting to hire prostitutes. Overall, Leben strongly recommended that the liquor license should not be 
renewed by the Commission. 



 

After examining North Dakota Century Code and presenting it to the Commission, Julie from the State’s 
Attorney office likewise agreed with Sheriff Leben to not renew the liquor license for the Crossroads 
Tavern. 

Jocelyn Miller approached the Commission to give details of her account of events and the nature of 
Crossroads, as well as discussed her role as co-owner of Crossroads Tavern.  

Lloyd Sir, attorney of private practice in Bismarck currently representing Mr. Miller, informed the 
Commission that Jake Miller’s absence at the special meeting was not out of indifference or lack of 
concern, but rather out of following the advice of counsel. 

Rich Stedler of Mat Pack Wrestling Club didn’t make any comments on the Millers’ charges, instead talking 
about the Millers have been pleasant to work with and gave some personal insight on the nature of drinking 
establishments. 

Motion by Comm. Schwab, 2nd by Comm. Woodcox to deny the renewal of a liquor license for Crossroads 
Tavern. All members present voted “AYE”. Motion carried. 

 
 
Meeting Adjourned. 
 
 
____________________________________                            ________________________________    
Mark Splonskowski, County Auditor/Treasurer                           Brian Bitner, Chairman  
 
 
 

 
  
 



 

BURLEIGH COUNTY COMMISSION 
MEETING 

JUNE 3RD, 2024 

 

5:07 PM 

Chairman Bitner called the regular meeting of the Burleigh County Commission to order. 

Roll call of the members: Commissioners Woodcox, Munson, Schwab, Bakken, and Chairman Bitner were present. 

Bitner added Bismarck Rural Fire Department to the meeting agenda per their request, and the State’s Attorney office requested 
to add an agenda item concerning the investigator position. Motion by Comm. Bakken, 2nd by Comm. Munson to approve the 
revised meeting agenda. All members present voted “AYE”. Motion carried. 

Motion by Comm. Munson, 2nd by Comm. Woodcox, 3rd by Comm. Bakken to approve the May 20th, 2024 meeting minutes and 
bills. Comm. Munson, Schwab, Bakken, and Bitner voted, “AYE”; Comm. Woodcox voted “NAY”. Motion carried. 

The following abatements were presented for the Board’s consideration; a complete copy of which are on file and available for 
inspection in the office of the Burleigh County Auditor/Treasurer. 
 

Owner Tax 
Year 

Legal Description Credit Type Current 
MV 

Reduced 
MV 

Kerry Gullickson 2022 
Lot 33, Block 23, Southwood 
Terrace 2nd Rep 

Error in property 
description $258,800  $257,600  

Kerry Gullickson 2023 
Lot 33, Block 23, Southwood 
Terrace 2nd Rep 

Error in property 
description $272,600  $271,400  

Sharon M Wheeler 2022 
Tract 1240 of part of Lots 3 & 7, 
Block 1, Southport Phase II 

Error in property 
description $506,200  $461,500  

Sharon M Wheeler 2023 
Tract 1240 of part of Lots 3 & 7, 
Block 1, Southport Phase II 

Error in property 
description $530,700  $486,000  

Leroy & Christi 
Mittleider 2023 

Lot 4, Block 4, East Meadows 
Estates 

90% Disabled 
Veteran $299,500  $263,500  

Dan & Pam Bauer 2023 1975 Marshfield 14 x 70, #19236 
100% Homestead 
Credit $7,526  $0  

Harold & Rita 
Gefroh 2022 

Lot 9, Block 11, Sonnet Heights 
Subdivision 

10% Homestead 
Credit $316,700  $304,189  

Harold & Rita 
Gefroh 2023 

Lot 9, Block 11, Sonnet Heights 
Subdivision 

100% Homestead 
Credit $324,300  $124,300  

Gary & Murian 
Vennie 2023 Lot A in SW1/4 

100% Homestead 
Credit $85,700  $0  

Gale McHenry 2022 Lot 3, Block 10, Replat of Calkins 
40% Homestead 
Credit $220,000  $195,000  

Robert Schmidt 2023 2000 Skyline 16 x 76, #D9300471N 
100% Homestead 
Credit $40,468  $0  

Robert Schmidt 2024 2000 Skyline 16 x 76, #D9300471N 
100% Homestead 
Credit $40,468  $0  

 
Motion by Comm. Munson, 2nd by Comm. Bakken to approve the Kerry Gullickson (2), Sharon Wheeler (2), Leroy & Christi 
Mittleider, Dan & Pam Bauer, Harold & Rita Gefroh (2), Gary & Murian Vennie, Gale McHenry, and Robert Schmidt (2) 
abatements plus the remainder of the consent agenda in its entirety. All members present voted “AYE”. Motion carried. 



 

Planning Director Flanagan brought forth to the Commission an appeal of complaint by Doug & Kristen Schultz regarding their 
storing of tree debris from the Beaver Creek Tree Service. A complaint was levied against the Schultzs concerning their moving 
of tree limbs, stumps, etc. from job sites to their property to burn. The Schultzs were subsequently told to clean up the debris 
within 30 days, but they requested the grace period be upped from 30 days to six months. Doug Schultz then came forward and 
explained that he and his wife use the logs and wood from that portion of property for personal use as lumber and firewood 
respectively, and stated that the Schultzs have approval from the state to burn some debris on their property. Doug also 
explained that operations to move the tree debris are ongoing and have been ongoing since the 2011 flood, as the bulk of the 
debris are remnants of that event. Kristen Dunbar likewise came forward and reiterated how some of the wood is used for 
personal use, and added that the area of property in question has naturally evolved into a nature preserve, and that they are 
currently no longer bring wood home. Motion by Comm. Bakken, 2nd by Comm. Munson to get a report from Planning Director 
Flanagan in three months to examine the state of the property and determine the rate of improvement. All members present 
voted “AYE”. Motion carried. 

HR Director Binder presented an update regarding timekeeping and payroll RFP to the Commission. It was revealed from Tyler 
Technologies, the current vendor, that county’s HR payroll module is truly integrated with the general ledger system, and there is 
an update available for the general ledger system. Binder stated that HR will request to place a bid to Tyler Technologies to 
determine the cost of upgrading everything, and to perhaps have a group of stakeholders explore the tech. No decision was 
needed at this time. 

A representative from the Sheriff’s Department gave another update regarding the Burleigh East renovations, pertaining to the 
moving of funds from the old jail maintenance account towards the renovation of Burleigh East. The State’s Attorney confirmed 
that the county can allocate those funds to the Burleigh East renovations as since the original purpose of the old jail maintenance 
account was fulfilled, the money is now a part of the general fund and can be used for whatever the county deems appropriate. 
Motion by Comm. Woodcox, 2nd by Comm. Bakken to allow the Sheriff’s department to move forward with collecting bids, 
present final totals to the Commission, and pay the winning bids with the cash from the old jail maintenance account. Chaiman 
Bitner recused himself from the vote. Comm. Munson, Woodcox, Schwab, and Bakken voted “AYE”. Motion carried. 

County Engineer Hall brought to the Commission a petition from North Cape Properties LLC to vacate a section line, and 
recommended the Commission accept the petition and set a public hearing for July 1st. Motion by Comm. Woodcox, 2nd by 
Comm. Bakken to accept the petition and set a public hearing for July 1st. All members present voted “AYE”. Motion carried. Hall 
then presented a request for realignment of stormwater drainage easements in Whispering Ridge Second Subdivision, and 
recommended the Commission accept the proposed resolution. Motion by Comm. Schwab, 2nd by Comm. Munson to accept the 
proposed resolution. All members present voted “AYE”. Motion carried. 

Finance Director Jacobs on behalf of Comm. Schwab revealed that in previous years Burleigh County was enrolled in the 
Landowner Assistance Program, which helps counties deal with noxious weeds, and that a budget amendment would be 
sufficient to enroll in the program. Jacobs recommended the Commission increase the weed board budget by $100,000 in 
anticipation of applying for the program. Motion by Comm. Schwab, 2nd by Comm. Munson to accept Jacobs’ recommendation. 
All members present voted “AYE”. Motion carried. 

The Bismarck Rural Fire Department came forward and invited the Commission to a groundbreaking ceremony on June 19th at 
6pm. 

Julie from the State’s Attorney office presented emails & resumes discussing promising prospects for their converted investigator 
position. Julie asked to convert an attorney position at the State’s Attorney office into another investigator position, as there is 
enough of a workload to be distributed among additional investigators. Motion by Comm. Bakken, 2nd by Comm. Munson to 
convert an attorney position at the State’s Attorney office into another investigator position. All members present voted “AYE”. 
Motion carried. Julie then asked for permission to approve variance of salaries above step five for the prospective hires given 
their respective job experiences. Motion by Comm. Schwab, 2nd by Comm. Woodcox to approve the variance of salaries. All 
members present voted “AYE”. Motion carried. 

Chairman Bitner gave a brief update relating to the carbon pipeline. 

 
 



 

Meeting Adjourned. 
 
 
____________________________________                            ________________________________    
Mark Splonskowski, County Auditor/Treasurer                           Brian Bitner, Chairman  
 
 
 

 
  
 





The following list of abatements and settlement of taxes is forwarded for action to the Burleigh County Commission: 

Abate # Owner Tax Year Legal Description Credit Type Current MV Reduced MV
24-615 Jesse Baker 2022 Lot 16, Block 19, Meadow Valley 4th 50% Disabled Veteran $243,900 $198,900
24-616 Jesse Baker 2023 Lot 16, Block 19, Meadow Valley 4th 60% Disabled Veteran $249,500 $195,500

24-621
Steven & Deborah Van 
Berkom 2023

Block 3, Auditor's Lot 2A being a part of Lot 
2, Promontory Point II 70% Disabled Veteran $570,400 $444,400

24-625 Michelle Welder 2022 Lot 7, Block 1, High Meadows

True and full value 
exceeds market value; 

nonexisting 
improvement assessed $371,800 $327,800

24-626 Michelle Welder 2023 Lot 7, Block 1, High Meadows

True and full value 
exceeds market value; 

nonexisting 
improvement assessed $399,900 $355,900

24-627 Thomas & Kellie Erhardt 2023 Lot 4, Block 1, Rolling Meadows 50% Disabled Veteran $331,500 $241,500

24-628 Harold Rants Jr 2023 2001 Yellowstone 28 x 60 100% Homestead Credit $67,872 $0

24-629 Harold Rants Jr 2024 2001 Yellowstone 28 x 60 100% Homestead Credit $67,872 $0

24-632 Darlene Steffan 2023
Lot 5, Block 2, Pebble Creek 9th Condo 
Assoc Unit 1, Garage Unit 1 100% Homestead Credit $199,900 $0





























 

 

 

 

 

ITEM 
 

 

 

 

# 7 





NOTICE and ORDER  

 DATE. 5-23-2024 

 TO: Jonathan & Charmaine Byers, 
8601 South Fork Jct, Bismarck, ND 58504 

ZONING VIOLATION: 8601 SOUTH FORK JCT, BISMARCK, ND 58504 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: BRIARDALE 111 Block 01 L4 619110 

Dear Property Owner: 
It has been brought to our attention, that your property is in violation of Article 12, Section 3 of the Burleigh 
County Zoning Ordinances. 

FINDINGS: 
l. Article 12 Section 3. Density 

Article 12 Section 3 Density 
The maximum allowable density is one (l) family per net acre. 

AUTHORIZATION: 
No more than one residential home is allowed per lot in any zoning jurisdiction except R3 
Single/Two-Family Residential District Regulations. Your lot is zoned RI Country Homes 
Residential District Regulation. 
You should be advised that under Article 30 Section 4 Violations, Penalty for Disregarding: 
Burleigh County has the authority, if the conditions described above are not remedied in the time 
allowed under this notice, to undertake legal proceedings of the corrections required. 

APPEAL  
If you desire to appeal this order, you must file a written request within thirty (30) days receipt of 
this order with the Board of County Commissioners. The notice of appeal shall be delivered to 
and verified by the County Building Official, PO Box 5518 Bismarck ND. 58506. 

Sincerely,  
Mitch Flanagan, Building Official, 
701-221-3727 Burleigh County, ND. 







NON-CONVERSION AGREEMENT 

 
Property Owner:  ____________________________________________________, “Owner”  

Property Address: _____________________________________________________________  

Property Legal Description:  _____________________________________________________  

____________________________________________________________________________  

Building Permit Number: ________________________________________________________  

Owner represents that they solely own the above referenced property and will record this non-
conversion agreement at the Burleigh County Recorder’s office and certifies, accepts, and 
declares that the following conditions and restrictions are placed on the affected property, and will 
run with the land, and affects rights and obligations of the Owner and shall be binding on the 
Owner, heirs, personal representatives, successors, future owners, and assigns.  
  
The accessory structure to which these conditions and restrictions apply:  
  

• Shall be used solely for parking of vehicles and limited storage.   
• Upon notice to the owner of the property, County staff shall be authorized to enter the 

property for the purpose of inspecting the exterior and interior of the accessory structure 
to verify code compliance. 

  
Owner: _______________________________________________________________________  
 
Name __________________________  Name _____________________________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA    )  
        ) SS  
COUNTY OF BURLEIGH           )  
  
 On this _____ day of ________, 20___, before me personally appeared 
_________________________________________, known to me to be the persons described 
in, and who executed the within and foregoing instrument and who severally acknowledged to 
me that they executed the same.  
            __________________________________  
            Notary Public  
  
 County of Burleigh by:  
  
              
_________________________________    __________________________________  
Attested by  
County Chairperson     County Auditor 
              
STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA    )  
         ) SS  
COUNTY OF BURLEIGH           )  



NON-CONVERSION AGREEMENT 

  
On this _____ day of ________, 20___, before me personally appeared___________________, 
the Burleigh County Chairperson, _____________________of the Burleigh County Commission 
and the Burleigh County County Auditor,_______________________ known to me to be the 
persons described in, and who executed the within and foregoing instrument and who severally 
acknowledged to me that they executed the same.  
  
  
            _________________________________________  
            Notary Public  
 
                 





60' ACCESS & UTLITY
EASEMENT

30.0'

30.0'

LOT 1, BLOCK 1
(HAGEROTT SUBDIVISION)

33.0' STATUTORY
EASEMENT33.0' STATUTORY

EASEMENT

LOT 3
10.00 ACRES

 1

110TH AVENUE

LOT 2
10.00 ACRES

LOT 1
18.22 ACRES

DEDICATED ROW 0.61 ACRES

TO  E 1/4 CORNER
SEC 23-140-80TO CENTER CORNER

SEC 23-140-80

TO SE CORNER
SEC 23-140-80

20' UTILITY EASEMENT

N
00

° 5
1'

 0
8"

E
26

37
.6

7'

NORTH LINE
SE 1/4, SEC. 23

SOUTH LINE
SECTION 23

330.21'

330.20'

33.0' STATUTORY
EASEMENT

33.0' STATUTORY
EASEMENTTO S 1/4 CORNER

SEC 23-140-80

N89° 12' 03"E660.39'

66
0.

07
'

66
0.

04
'

N89° 11' 32"E
660.44'

S89° 11' 32"W 660.45'

12
02

.4
3'

12
02

.4
8'

66
0.

07
'

66
0.

04
'

75
.0

3'

75
.0

3'

S0
0°

 5
1'

 0
4"

W
26

37
.5

6'

N89° 11' 32"E
660.45'

N89° 11' 32"E
1320.89'

N89° 12' 03"E
1320.78'

40.02' 40.02'
N89° 12' 03"E660.39'

N89° 11' 32"E
63.07'

S89° 12' 03"W
660.39'

N89° 11' 55"E 660.40'

DEDICATED ROW
1.14 ACRES

330.19'
20' UTILITY EASEMENT

75.0'

POINT OF BEGINNING
ND STATE PLANE

COORDINATE
N=459073.5

E=1909167.2

ND STATE PLANE
COORDINATE
N=459082.8
E=1909167.6

N89° 11' 47"E660.42'

N
00

° 5
1'

 0
6"

E
66

0.
05

'

N
00

° 5
1'

 0
6"

E
66

0.
05

'

N
00

° 5
1'

 0
6"

E
90

5.
30

'

L=424.00'
R=275.00'

CB=N45° 01' 19"E
CL=383.24'

FLECK SUBDIVISION
IN BURLEIGH COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA

and
ndependent

urveying &S

I
L

ngineeringEBURLEIGH, NORTH DAKOTA

FLECK SUBDIVISION

PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR
MARK R. ISAACS, LS-9628

SCALE: 1" = 100'

1000 50
DATE: APRIL 16TH, 2024

NOTES:
1. BEARINGS AND DISTANCES MAY VARY FROM PREVIOUS

DOCUMENTS OF RECORD DUE TO DIFFERENT METHODS
OF FIELD MEASUREMENTS.

2. SUBJECT TO ALL EASEMENTS OF RECORD WHETHER
SHOWN OR NOT SHOWN.

3. EXISTING ZONING - AGRICULTURAL
4. THE ACCESS EASEMENT SHOWN HEREON IS FOR THE

BENEFIT OF LOTS 1, 2, AND 3, BLOCK 1.

BASED ON NORTH DAKOTA SOUTH
ZONE-NAD83, INTERNATIONAL FEET.

MEASUREMENTS HAVE BEEN ESTABLISHED
BY RTK FROM THE "BSMK" CORS STATION

AND ARE REPORTED IN GRID.

VERTICAL DATUM - NAVD 1988.

PART OF THE SE 1/4 SECTION 23 T140N, R80W 

PART OF SE 1/4 SEC. 23-140-80

LAND DESCRIPTION

A TRACT OF LAND BEING THE EAST HALF OF THE WEST HALF OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 23, TOWNSHIP 140 NORTH, RANGE 80 WEST
OF THE 5TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, BURLEIGH COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHEAST QUARTER; THENCE NORTH 89° 11' 32" EAST ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID
SOUTHEAST QUARTER A DISTANCE OF 660.45 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID HALF-HALF-QUARTER AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING;
THENCE NORTH 00° 51' 08" EAST ON THE WEST LINE OF SAID HALF-HALF-QUARTER A DISTANCE OF 2637.66 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID
HALF-HALF-QUARTER; THENCE NORTH 89° 12' 03" EAST ON THE NORTH LINE OF SAID HALF-HALF-QUARTER A DISTANCE OF 660.39 FEET TO THE
NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID HALF-HALF-QUARTER; THENCE SOUTH 00° 51' 04" WEST ON THE EAST LINE OF SAID HALF-HALF-QUARTER A DISTANCE
OF 2637.56 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID HALF-HALF-QUARTER; THENCE SOUTH 89° 11' 32" WEST ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID
HALF-HALF-QUARTER A DISTANCE OF 660.45 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. SAID TRACT OF LAND CONTAINING 39.97 ACRES MORE OR LESS AND
SUBJECT TO ALL LEGAL RIGHTS OF WAY AND EASEMENTS..

ACREAGE TABLE

TOTAL 39.97 ACRES

DEDICATED ROW   1.75 ACRES

LOT 1 18.22 ACRES
LOT 2   10.00 ACRES

OWNER:
KURT & DANA FLECK
3566 110TH AVENUE N
BISMARCK, ND  58503

LOT 3   10.00 ACRES

LEGEND

SET CAPPED REBAR - LS9628

NON-ACCESS LINE

FOUND SURVEY MONUMENT

OWNER'S CERTIFICATE OF DEDICATION

WE, THE UNDERSIGNED, BEING SOLE OWNER OF THE LAND PLATTED HEREIN, DO HEREBY VOLUNTARILY CONSENT TO THE EXECUTION OF SAID
PLAT AND DO DEDICATE ALL THE RIGHT OF WAY IDENTIFIED HEREIN TO BURLEIGH COUNTY.  I ALSO DEDICATE EASEMENTS TO RUN WITH THE
LAND FOR GAS, ELECTRIC, TELEPHONE, WATER, OR OTHER PUBLIC UTILITIES OR SERVICES ON OR UNDER THOSE CERTAIN STRIPS OF LAND
DESIGNATED HEREON AS  "UTILITY EASEMENT".

WE ALSO DEDICATE THE ACCESS EASEMENT TO ALL LAND OWNING PARTIES, TO RUN WITH THE LAND FOR THE PURPOSE OF CONSTRUCTING,
OPERATING, AND MAINTAINING THE ACCESS UNDER OR UPON THE REAL PROPERTY OF THOSE CERTAIN STRIPS OF LAND SO DESIGNATED.

______________________________________                                                                         __________________________________________
KURT FLECK                                                                                                                                DANA FLECK

STATE OF _______________  )
         ) SS

COUNTY OF ______________)

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN BEFORE ME, A NOTARY PUBLIC. THIS       DAY OF                 , 20___.

                                                                                                                   NOTARY PUBLIC ______________________________

APPROVAL BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF THE COUNTY OF BURLEIGH, NORTH DAKOTA, HAS APPROVED THE SUBDIVISION OF LAND AS SHOWN
ON THIS PLAT, HAS ACCEPTED THE DEDICATION OF ALL STREETS SHOWN THEREON, HAS APPROVED THE GROUNDS SHOWN ON THE PLAT AS AN
AMENDMENT TO THE MASTER PLAN OF BURLEIGH COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA, AND DOES HEREBY VACATE ANY PREVIOUS PLATTING WITHIN THE
BOUNDARY OF THIS PLAT.

THE PLAT WAS DONE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA, THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AND ORDINANCES OF THE
COUNTY OF BURLEIGH.

THE FOREGOING ACTION OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSION OF BURLEIGH COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA, WAS TAKEN BY RESOLUTION
APPROVED ON THE_______DAY OF_________,  20    .

____________________________________________                ______________________________________
BRIAN BITNER - CHAIRMAN                                                          ATTEST:   MARK SPLONSKOWSKI,
                                                                                                         COUNTY AUDITOR/TREASURER

APPROVAL OF THE COUNTY ENGINEER

I, MARCUS J. HALL, COUNTY ENGINEER FOR THE COUNTY OF BURLEIGH, NORTH DAKOTA, HEREBY APPROVES THIS PLAT OF "FLECK SUBDIVISION"
AS SHOWN ON THE PLAT, DATED THIS _____ DAY OF _______________, 20___.

__________________________________
MARCUS J. HALL, PE
COUNTY ENGINEER

APPROVAL OF COUNTY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

THE COUNTY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION OF BURLEIGH COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA, HEREBY APPROVES FLECK SUBDIVISION AS SHOWN
ON THIS PLAT, THIS PLAT WAS DONE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA, THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AND THE
ORDINANCES OF THE COUNTY OF BURLEIGH AND REGULATIONS ADOPTED BY SAID PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION.

THE FOREGOING ACTION OF THE COUNTY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION OF BURLEIGH COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA, WAS TAKEN BY
RESOLUTION APPROVED ON THE_______DAY OF________________,  20___,

____________________________________________                ______________________________________
DENNIS AGNEW - CHAIRMAN                                                      ATTEST:  MITCH FLANAGAN - SECRETARY

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE

I, MARK R. ISAACS, A PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR IN THE STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA, HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE APPROVED PLAT IS A TRUE
COPY OF THE NOTES OF A SURVEY PERFORMED UNDER MY SUPERVISION AND COMPLETED ON AUGUST 10, 2023.  THAT ALL INFORMATION
SHOWN HEREON IS TRUE AND CORRECT TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE AND BELIEF, THAT ALL MONUMENTS SHOWN HEREON ARE CORRECT,
THAT ALL REQUIRED MONUMENTS HAVE BEEN SET, AND THAT ALL DIMENSIONAL AND GEODETIC DETAILS ARE CORRECT.

MARK R. ISAACS, RLS 9628                               .

BENCHMARK - SOUTHWEST CORNER LOT
1, BLOCK 1, A CAPPED REBAR FLUSH WITH
THE GROUND.  ELEVATION = 1919.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
24012

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/27/24

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1"=

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET: 1 OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NUMBER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
MRI

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG REVISION DATES

AutoCAD SHX Text
2/20/24

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG NAME:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Fleck Subdivision Final Plat.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
Mandan, ND 58554

AutoCAD SHX Text
Phone: 701-663-5184

AutoCAD SHX Text
Cell: 701-595-2079

AutoCAD SHX Text
4215 Old Red Trail NW

AutoCAD SHX Text
mark@ilsurveynd.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
T







80'

S66°03'18"E  300.04'

S2
3°

43
'2

7"
W

  1
14

.8
5'

S2
3°

51
'4

6"
W

  2
00

.5
7'

N66°03'18"W  312.06'

N2
5°

59
'0

7"
E 

 1
00

.1
0'

N2
6°

00
'0

1"
E 

 2
15

.5
2'

10' UTILITY
EASMENT

10' UTILITYEASEMENT

118' ± 

45' ±

1645

1642

1643

1644

16
41

16
41

16
42

1643

16
43

1642

164
0

16
38

16
40

16
4016
39

16
41

16
42

164
2

16
42

1637

40
.0

0'

10
8.

74
'

51
.8

3'

11
4.

85
'

S89°38'21"E
5093.76'

N4
°2

7'
25

"E
26

38
.1

9'

1635

16
34

16
33

16
32

163
5163

2

S2
4°

00
'32

"W
28

.0
7'

S3
6°

59
'53

"W
64

.19
'

S54
°04

'22
"W

40.
40'

S64°40'18"W

41.51'
S3

2°
22

'37
"W

37
.56

'

S2
3°

49
'55

"W
55

.7
5'

S1
4°

05
'3

5"
W

66
.3

1'

37.13'

274.94'

81.80'

218.24'

LEGEND
SET 5/8"x18" REBAR W/ PLS CAP
STAMPED "D. SOLEM PLS 8423"

FOUND IRON MONUMENT W/ LS 2363 CAP

FOUND 5/8" REBAR

SECTION CORNER

COMPUTED CORNER

NOTES
BASIS OF BEARING:

BEARINGS SHOWN ARE GRID BEARINGS BASED ON THE
NORTH DAKOTA STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM,

NAD 83, SOUTH ZONE
INTERNATIONAL FEET

VERTICAL DATUM: NAVD 88

*PROPERTY SUBJECT TO ALL EASEMENTS OF RECORD
WHETHER SHOWN OR NOT SHOWN.

RIVERSIDE 3RD SUBDIVISION
A PLAT OF LOTS 12,13 & 14, BLOCK 1 OF RIVERSIDE SUBDIVISION

IN SECTIONS 27 & 28,TOWNSHIP 140 NORTH, RANGE 81 WEST OF THE 5TH P.M.,
BURLEIGH COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA

0
GRAPHIC SCALE

Prepared By:

3456 E. Century Ave. Bismarck,
North Dakota 58503 701-258-1110

FAX 701-258-1111 www.bartwest.com

Project #21400.000

N

S

W E

P.O.C.
SW COR.

LOT 12, BLOCK 1
RIVERSIDE SUBDIVISION

N: 456515.56
E: 1869503.20

     DESCRIPTION

All that certain real property situated in Lots 12, 13 and 14, Block 1 of Riverside Subdivision in Section 27 and 28, Township 140 North, Range 81 West of the 5th P.M.,
Burleigh County, North Dakota described as follows:

Beginning at the Southwest Corner of said Lot 12; thence N25°59'07"E, along the west line of said Lot 12, a distance of 100.10 feet to the Southwest Corner of said
Lot 13; thence N26°00'01"E, along the west line of said Lot 13, a distance of 215.52 feet to the Northwest Corner of said Lot 14; thence S66°03'18"E, along the north
line of said Lot 14, a distance of 300.04 feet to the Northeast Corner of said Lot 14; thence S23°43'27"W, along the east line of said Lot 14 and the westerly
right-of-way line of Island Road, a distance of 114.85 feet to the Southeast Corner of said Lot 14; thence S23°51'46"W, along said west right-of-way line, a distance of
200.57 feet to the Southeast Corner of said Lot 12; thence N66°03'18"W, along the south line of said Lot 12, a distance of 312.06 feet to the Point of Beginning and
containing 2.70 acres, more or less.

SE
CT

IO
N 

LI
NE

IS
LA

ND
 R

OA
D

(A
SP

HA
LT

)

R.
O.

W
. L

IN
E

LOTS   117,201 S.F.   2.70 ACRES
STREETS             0 S.F.   0.00 ACRES
TOTAL   117,201 S.F.   2.70 ACRES

AREA

Dayne Solem, LS-8423

     SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE

I, Dayne Solem, a Professional Land Surveyor in and for the State of North Dakota, do hereby certify that at the request of Paul Hartmann, and under his direction, did
complete a survey of the property described on this plat as Riverside 3rd Subdivision. The platted subdivision has the numbered lots, locations, dimensions and
designations as shown on the plat which is correct to the best of my knowledge and belief. That all monuments shown thereon have been set, and that all dimensional
and geodetic details are correct.

Dated this                     day of                                                 , 2024.

OWNER'S CERTIFICATE

Know all men by these presents: Paul Hartmann and Jeralyn Heiser are the owners of all the land herein platted as Riverside 3rd Subdivision, and that the plat and
survey thereof was made at the request of Paul Hartmann for the purpose of establishing the platted subdivision. Paul Hartmann and Jeralyn Heiser also certify that the
development of this land shall conform to all existing applicable zoning, subdivision and erosion and sediment control regulations.

They also dedicate easements to run with the land for gas, electric, telephone, water, or other public utilities or services on or under those certain strips of land
designated hereon as "Utility Easement".

I do dedicate all public rights-of-ways as shown hereon to Burleigh County use forever.

 , 2024
Paul Hartmann                                                                                 Date
                     
                                                                                                                                                               , 2024
Jeralyn Heiser Date

On this _________ day of ________________________ , 2024, before me the undersigned officer, personally appeared Paul Hartmann and Jeralyn Heiser , known to
me to be the persons described in, and who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged that they executed the same.

___________________________________________________
Notary Public

STATE OF ________________________)
     )SS

COUNTY OF ______________________)

     APPROVAL OF COUNTY PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION

The County Planning and Zoning Commission of Burleigh County, North Dakota, hereby approves the Riverside 3rd Subdivision, as shown on this plat. This plat was done
in accordance with the laws of the state of North Dakota, the comprehensive plan and ordinances of the County of Burleigh and regulations adopted by said Planning
and Zoning Commission.

The foregoing action of the County Planning and Zoning Commission of Burleigh County, North Dakota, was taken by resolution approved on the _________ day of
________________________ , 2024.

Dennis Agnew, Chairman Attest: Mitch Flanagan, Building Official-Director

     APPROVAL OF BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSION

The Board of County Commissioners of the County of Burleigh, North Dakota, has approved the subdivision of land as shown on this plat, has accepted the dedication of
all streets shown thereon, and does hereby vacate any previous platting within the boundary of this plat.

The plat was done in accordance with the laws of the State of North Dakota, the comprehensive plan and ordinances of the County of Burleigh.

The foregoing action of the Board of County Commissioners of Burleigh County, North Dakota, was taken by resolution approved on the _________ day of
________________________ , 2024.

Brian Bitner, Chair Attest: Mark Splonskowski, Burleigh County Auditor

     APPROVAL OF COUNTY ENGINEER

I, Marcus J. Hall, County Engineer of the County of Burleigh, North Dakota, hereby approve this plat of Riverside 3rd Subdivision, Burleigh County, North Dakota as
shown on this plat.

Dated this _________ day of ________________________ , 2024.

Marcus J. Hall, P.E., County Engineer

OWNER
PAUL HARTMANN & JERALYN HEISER

9922 ISLAND ROAD
BISMARCK, ND 58503

SURVEYOR
DAYNE SOLEM, PLS
BARTLETT & WEST

3456 E. CENTURY AVE
BISMARCK, ND 58503

701-258-1110

DATE: JANUARY 18, 2024

FLOODPLAIN INFORMATION
FEMA FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP

PRELIMINARY COMMUNITY PANEL NUMBER 38015C0570E
DATED 5/13/2022 - ZONE AE

BASE FLOOD ELEVATION: 1642.50
PER BURLEIGH COUNTY BOARD

LOT 1
2.70 ACRES

1

NO
N-

AC
CE

SS

On this _________ day of ________________________ , 2024, before me the undersigned officer, personally appeared Dayne Solem, known to me to be the person
who is described in, and who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged that they executed the same.

___________________________________________________
Notary Public

STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA )
          )SS

COUNTY OF ___________________)

30 3015

R.
O.

W
. L

IN
E

MI
SS

OU
RI

 R
IV

ER

MEANDER LINE

NE 1/4

SECTION 28
NW 1/4

SECTION 27

NO
N-

AC
CE

SS

LOT 11, BLOCK 1
RIVERSIDE SUBDIVISION

LOT 15, BLOCK 1
RIVERSIDE SUBDIVISION

( IN FEET )
1 inch = 30 ft.

33,000 CFS CONTOUR
1641 ELEVATION

NW SEC. COR.
SECTION 27

N: 459429.46
E: 1869846.54

E 1/4 COR.
SECTION 27

N: 456645.39
E: 1875009.41

1

1

SW 1/4

SECTION 27

MISSOURI RIVER
WATER ELEVATION

AS OF 8/17/2023
1630.97

BENCHMARK
ELEVATION: 1641.12 (NAVD 88)

5/8" REBAR WITH YELLOW PLASTIC CAP
NE CORNER LOT 1 BLOCK 1

BENCHMARK
5/8" REBAR WITH

YELLOW PLASTIC CAP

100' OHWM
Setback

SW1/4 SEC. 27     31,269 S.F.    0.72 ACRES
SE1/4 SEC. 28      85,749 S.F. 1.97 ACRES
NE1/4 SEC. 28    183 S.F. 0.01 ACRES

ACREAGE

TOTAL       117,201 S.F. 2.70 ACRES

SE 1/4

SECTION 28







Burleigh County Final Plat Review 
 

SUBDIVISION:  Peaceful View Subdivision 

Location: Part of the SW ¼ and the SE ¼ of Section 11, Part of Lot 

B, and Part of the NE ¼ of Section 14, all in Township 

137 North, Range 80 West, Burleigh County, North 

Dakota 

Engineer: Independent Land Surveying & Engineering 

 

DATE: May 14, 2024 

 

 

Burleigh County Highway Department: 

 

Final Plat (Casey Einrem) 

 

Comments: 

 

1. On the drawing at the Point of Beginning, accidentally spelled “Coordinae”, please 

change to “Coordinate”. 

2. Once the above minor change is made, all technical comments have been addressed 

and the submitted Final Plat meets the requirements in Burleigh County Ordinance 

for Final Plats.  Recommend approval of the Final Plat for meeting the technical 

requirements. 





 

 

 

 

 

ITEM 
 

 

 

 

# 8 



 
 

MEMO 
 
DATE:  June 7, 2024 
 
TO: Board of Burleigh County Commissioners 
 
FROM:  Rachel Lukaszewski, Executive Director 
  Bismarck-Mandan Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) 
 
RE: Request to Consider the 2024 Urban Functional Classification System 
 
 
REQUEST: 
The Bismarck-Mandan Metropolitan Planning Organization requests consideration and approval of the 2024 Urban 
Functional Classification System. 
 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: 
Each time a Decennial Census is taken, the Bis-Man MPO updates the Urbanized Area Boundary (UZA) and the 
Urban Functionally Classified (FC) System. The UZA was updated in fall 2023.  Since that time, the Bis-Man MPO 
has worked with the engineering and planning staff from its jurisdictions, including Burleigh County, to update the 
Urban FC System.  The system identifies arterial and collector roadways within the Urbanized Area which are 
expected to funnel and carry local and regional traffic.  Functionally Classified roadways will also be eligible for the 
Federal funding that is administered by NDDOT via the Bis-Man MPO. 
 
The proposed changes can be viewed at: tinyurl.com/jy9ary8f.  A list of changes are also attached. The first page 
outlines the changes requested within the UZA boundary.  This includes additions, upgrades, and downgrades to 
roadways within the Urban FC System.  The second page shows changes that may be requested in the future by 
NDDOT (on behalf of Morton County) or Burleigh County.  Due to the UZA Boundary being made smaller, a few 
sections of the Urban FC System will be migrated onto the State and/or Rural Functional Class Systems.   
 
The Bis-Man MPO TAC and Policy Board will consider approval of the 2024 Functional Class System at their June 
meetings.  The MPO is likewise requesting consideration and approval from all jurisdictions in the month of June.  
The approved system will be sent to NDDOT by July 1. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
No immediate financial impact for the Burleigh County.  If a federal-aid grant is awarded to the County for a 
functionally classified roadway, the County may be required to provide a local funding match which is typically 10-
20% of the project. 
 
STAFF IMPACT: 
NDDOT will request County Engineering staff to update the Rural Functional Class System after the Urban 
Functional Class changes are approved.  The MPO has provided a list of suggested changes, which can be adjusted 
by the County.  The MPO can also provide a shapefile of these changes to further assist County staff with their 
request to NDDOT. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: 
Motion to approval the 2024 Urban Functional Classification System. 
 
CONTACT: 
Rachel Lukaszewski, Bismarck-Mandan MPO Executive Director 
rlukaszewski@bismarcknd.gov 
701-355-1852 
 

file://c08cas1/data$/CA/Auditor's%20Office/Agenda%20Packets/2024/June%2017th/tinyurl.com/jy9ary8f
mailto:rlukaszewski@bismarcknd.gov


Map ID Road From To Change From Final Jurisdiction
Mileage 
Length 2022 AADT* Justification

1 Sunset Drive Old Red Trail 27th Street N Collector Minor Arterial Mandan 0.3 5870 (2022) Land development in this area increases and will increase traffic counts.
2 27th Street N Sunset Drive Hwy 1806 Collector Minor Arterial Mandan 1 2,775 Land development in this area increases and will increase traffic counts.
3 13th Ave NW Lohstreter Rd 13th Ave NW Collector Local Mandan 0.08 not applicable Remove to reconfigure the collector network and add Lohstreter Rd.
4 6th St NW 13th Ave NW 12th Ave NW Collector Local Mandan 0.15 not applicable Remove to reconfigure the collector network and add Lohstreter Rd.

5 Lohstreter Rd 13th Ave NW Custer Drive Local Collector Mandan 0.25 830 (2019) - 975 (2006)
Traffic counts and geometry favor Lohstreter over the current alignment on 13th Ave/6th St.  Lohstreter is the eventual 

collector for the area, and this adds Lohstreter onto the System.
6 Custer Drive Lohstreter Rd 12th Ave NW Local Collector Mandan 0.3 no data available Closes the loop of Lohstreter Rd
7 12th Ave NW Custer Drive 13th Ave NW Local Collector Mandan 0.08 1450-2205 (2009) Closes the loop of Lohstreter Rd
8 6th Ave NE 1st St NE Main St Local Minor Arterial Mandan 0.11 2,265 Continues 6th Ave NE in a northward direction.  Captures a high volume block in downtown Mandan.
9 8th Ave SE 19th St SE 27th St SE Local Collector Mandan 0.75 1,895 Geometries meet general design for a collector.  Over 700 dwelling unites in this neighborhood

10 27th St SE 8th Ave SE 14th Av SE Local Collector Mandan 0.35 no data available Geometries meet general design for a collector.  Over 700 dwelling unites in this neighborhood
11 14th Ave SE 27th Ave SE 19th St SE Local Collector Mandan 0.71 1060 Geometries meet general design for a collector.  Over 700 dwelling unites in this neighborhood
12 McKenzie Dr 39th Ave SE 34th Ave SE Local Collector Mandan 0.23 1045 Extend classification along McKenzie Dr. More closely aligns with patterns in the neighborhood.
13 34th Ave SE McKenzie Dr 21st St SE Local Collector Mandan 0.4 no data available Extend classification along McKenzie Dr. More closely along with patterns in the neighborhood.
14 21st St SE 34th Ave SE 40th Ave SE Local Collector Mandan 0.6 2075 Extend classification along McKenzie Dr. More closely along with patterns in the neighborhood.
15 19th St SE 40th Ave SE 46th Ave SE Collector Local Mandan 0.5 not applicable Remove as the road does not carry much traffic.

16 Borden Harbor Dr SE Southbay Dr SE Bayshore Bend SE Local Collector Mandan 0.52 1220
Since last reclassification the roads have been functioning more and more like collectors.  Serves a development of over 500 

homes.

17 Bay Shore Bend SE Borden Harbor Dr SE Lakewood Dr SE Local Collector Mandan 0.2 no data available
Since last reclassification the roads have been functioning more and more like collectors.  Serves a development of over 500 

homes.

18 Lakewood Dr SE Bay Shore Bend SE 40th Ave SE Local Collector Mandan 0.42 no data available
Since last reclassification the roads have been functioning more and more like collectors.  Serves a development of over 500 

homes.

19 40th Ave SE Lakewood Dr SE Southbay Dr SE Local Collector Mandan 0.93 565
Since last reclassification the roads have been functioning more and more like collectors.  Serves a development of over 500 

homes.
20 46th Ave SE Memorial Hwy McKenzie Ave SE Collector Minor Arterial Mandan 0.55 3865 - 5835 Roadway functions more as an arterial, not a collector.  Geometry is more similar to an arterial than a collector.

21 Bis-Man Ave Memorial Hwy Twin City Dr Local Collector Mandan 0.37 945 - 1175 (2013)
Roadway collects traffic from the industrial park and Twin City Estates (over 200 dwelling units), and distributes onto Main St 

and Memorial Hwy.

22 Twin City Drive Bis-Man Ave E Main St Local Collector Mandan 1.12 2470 - 2720 (2014)
Roadway collects traffic from the industrial park and Twin City Estates (over 200 dwelling units), and distributes onto Main St 

and Memorial Hwy.
23 REMOVED
24 E Century Ave Centennial Rd Roosevelt Dr Collector Minor Arterial Bismarck 0.55 8955 Land development  and traffic volume increases.  Section functions as a minor arterial, no longer as a collector.
25 Santa Fe Ave S Washington St Boston Dr Local Collector Bismarck 0.62 no data available Land development  and traffic volume increases.  Section functions as a collector, no longer as a local road.
26 Boston Dr Santa Fe Ave Burleigh Ave Local Collector Bismarck 0.82 no data available Land development  and traffic volume increases.  Section functions as a collector, no longer as a local road.

27 Ridgedale St Frontage Road 57th Ave NW 64th Ave N Local Collector Bismarck 0.92 no data available
Frontage Road System along US83. Is within NDDOT ROW.  NDDOT suggests functional classification in the event that future 

road work is needed in conjunction with a project on the US Highway.

28 State Street E Frontage Road Holiday Inn 43rd Ave N Local Collector Bismarck 0.38 445 (2019)
Frontage Road System along US83/State Street. Is within NDDOT ROW.  NDDOT suggests functional classification in the event 

that future road work is needed in conjunction with a project on the US Highway.

29
State Street E/13 St N Frontage 
Road Divide Ave Capitol Ave Local Collector Bismarck 0.46 1225 (2006)

Frontage Road System along US83/State Street. Is within NDDOT ROW.  NDDOT suggests functional classification in the event 
that future road work is needed in conjunction with a project on the US Highway.

30
State Street W/ 12 St N Frontage 
Road - 1 Interchange Ave Capitol Ave Local Collector Bismarck 0.14 1720

Frontage Road System along US83/State Street. Is within NDDOT ROW.  NDDOT suggests functional classification in the event 
that future road work is needed in conjunction with a project on the US Highway.

31
State Street W/ 12 St N Frontage 
Road - 2 Capitol Ave North of Divide Ave/ 12 St N Local Collector Bismarck 0.33 820 (2019)

Frontage Road System along US83/State Street. Is within NDDOT ROW.  NDDOT suggests functional classification in the event 
that future road work is needed in conjunction with a project on the US Highway.

32
Bismarck Expressway South 
Frontage Road System - 1 Portland Dr Laramie Dr Local Collector Bismarck 0.45 140

Frontage Road System along Bismarck Expressway. Is within NDDOT ROW.  NDDOT suggests functional classification in the 
event that future road work is needed in conjunction with a project on the State System.

33
Bismarck Expressway South 
Frontage Road System - 2 Bozeman Dr S 7th St Local Collector Bismarck 0.4 430

Frontage Road System along Bismarck Expressway. Is within NDDOT ROW.  NDDOT suggests functional classification in the 
event that future road work is needed in conjunction with a project on the State System.

34 S 7th Street Bismarck Expressway Denver Ave Local Collector Bismarck 0.3 2500 - 2910 (2014)

Needed to complete classification of the Frontage Road System along Bismarck Expressway. Frontage road is within NDDOT 
ROW.  NDDOT suggests functional classification in the event that future road work is needed in conjunction with a project on 

the State System.

35 Industrial Dr Frontage Road WAPA Miriam Dr Local Collector Bismarck 1.27 1530 (2009)
Frontage Road System along Bismarck Expressway. Is within NDDOT ROW.  NDDOT suggests functional classification in the 

event that future road work is needed in conjunction with a project on the State System.

36 Miriam Dr Interchange Ave Bismarck Expressway Local Collector Bismarck 0.04 2205

Needed to complete classification of the Frontage Road System along Bismarck Expressway. Frontage road is within NDDOT 
ROW.  NDDOT suggests functional classification in the event that future road work is needed in conjunction with a project on 

the State System.

37 American Dr University Dr Basin Ave Local Collector Bismarck 0.01 310

Needed to complete classification of the Frontage Road System along Bismarck Expressway. Frontage road is within NDDOT 
ROW.  NDDOT suggests functional classification in the event that future road work is needed in conjunction with a project on 

the State System.

38 Basin Ave Frontage Rd American Dr Airport Ave Local Collector Bismarck 0.83 no data available
Frontage Road System along Bismarck Expressway. Is within NDDOT ROW.  NDDOT suggests functional classification in the 

event that future road work is needed in conjunction with a project on the State System.
39 Old Red Trail 2013 UZA Boundary 2023 UZA Boundary Local Minor Arterial Morton County 0.42 630 Extension to meet new UZA boundary

40 McKenzie Dr 39th Ave SE 40th Ave SE Minor arterial Collector Mandan 0.13 1045
The minor arterial was a stub.  We are requesting this roadway be demoted to collector to better align with traffic patterns.  

Further sections of McKenzie are being requested to be a collector, see number  12.

41 Baretta St Sunset Drive Hwy 1806 Local Collector Mandan 1 no data available
Matches the FARMP alignment.  New subdivision being built.  Mandan said the roads will b e constructed by the time 2024 FC 

is approved. 

42 8th Ave NW 27th St N Baretta St Local Collector Mandan 0.5 385
Matches the FARMP alignment.  New subdivision being built.  Mandan said the roads will b e constructed by the time 2024 FC 

is approved. 

43 12th St NW 27th St N Baretta St Local Collector Mandan 0.5 no data available
Matches the FARMP alignment.  New subdivision being built.  Mandan said the roads will b e constructed by the time 2024 FC 

is approved. 

44 Sunset Drive 27th St N Baretta St Local Collector Mandan 0.5 no data available
Matches the FARMP alignment.  New subdivision being built.  Mandan said the roads will b e constructed by the time 2024 FC 

is approved. 

FINAL DRAFT  Requested Changes: May 2024 
 BMMPO Functional Class Update

https://gis.dot.nd.gov/external/ge_html/?viewer=ext_transinfo


Proposed Changes to the Rural and State Functional Classification Systems - Corresponding to Chagnes in the 2023 UZA Boundary

101 ND 1804/ 71st Ave 2013 UZA Boundary 2023 UZA Boundary Urban Minor Arterial
Rural Collector (or another designation 

requested by the State) NDDOT 3.89 1670-3570 Removing from Urban and adding to Rural/State  Highway System.  UZA boundary change.  MPO is submitting request.

102 River Road 2023 UZA Boundary Burnt Creek Lp Urban Collector
Rural Collector (or another designation 

requested by the County) Burleigh 1.12 1,495 Removing from Urban and adding to Rural system.  UZA boundary change.  Burleigh County will submit a follow-up request.

103 Burnt Creek Rd River Rd US 1804/ 71st Ave Urban Collector
Rural Collector (or another designation 

requested by the County) Burleigh 0.08 no data available Removing from Urban and adding to Rural system.  UZA boundary change.  Burleigh County will submit a follow-up request.

104 Tyler Parkway 2023 UZA Boundary US 1804/ 71st Ave Urban Minor Arterial
Rural Collector (or another designation 

requested by the County) Burleigh 0.35 1,050 Removing from Urban and adding to Rural system.  UZA boundary change.  Burleigh County will submit a follow-up request.

105 REMOVED:  Sonora Way

106 US 83 (N Bound) 2023 UZA Boundary 2013 UZA Boundary Urban Principle Arterial
Rural Principle Arterial (or another 
designation requested by the State) NDDOT 1.3 11,190 Removing from Urban and adding to Rural/State  Highway System.  UZA boundary change.  MPO is submitting request.

107 US 83 (S Bound) 2023 UZA Boundary 2013 UZA Boundary Urban Principle Arterial
Rural Principle Arterial (or another 
designation requested by the State) NDDOT 1.3 11,190 Removing from Urban and adding to Rural/State  Highway System.  UZA boundary change.  MPO is submitting request.

108 Lincoln Rd 2023 UZA Boundary 80th Street Urban Collector
Rural Collector (or another designation 

requested by the County) Burleigh 0.35 210 Removing from Urban and adding to Rural system.  UZA boundary change.  Burleigh County will submit a follow-up request.

109 ND 1804/ University Dr 2023 UZA Boundary Sentinel St Urban Minor Arterial
Rural Collector (or another designation 

requested by the State) NDDOT 2.6 5500 (2015) - 6755 (2019) Removing from Urban and adding to Rural/State  Highway System.  UZA boundary change.  MPO is submitting request.

201 ND 1806 N 2023 UZA Boundary 2013 UZA Boundary Urban Principal Arterial 
Rural Collector (or another designation 

requested by the State) NDDOT 4.17 3220 Removing from Urban and adding to Rural system.  UZA boundary change.  Burleigh County will submit a follow-up request.

202 ND 1806 S 2023 UZA Boundary 2013 UZA Boundary Urban Principal Arterial 
Rural Principle Arterial (or another 
designation requested by the State) NDDOT 0.31 2475 Removing from Urban and adding to Rural/State  Highway System.  UZA boundary change.  MPO is submitting request.

203 ND 6 2023 UZA Boundary 2013 UZA Boundary Urban Principal Arterial 
Rural Principal Arterial (or another 

designation requested by the State) NDDOT 1.8 2635 Removing from Urban and adding to Rural/State  Highway System.  UZA boundary change.  MPO is submitting request.

204 Old Red Trail/ Co Rd 139A 2023 UZA Boundary State Hwy 25 Local 
Rural Collector (or another designation 

requested by the State) NDDOT 1.38 590 Adding to the Rural/State Highway System to complete the functional classification of Old Red Trail on the Urban System



Map ID Road From To Change From Final Jurisdiction
Mileage 
Length 2022 AADT* Justification

1 Sunset Drive Old Red Trail 27th Street N Collector Minor Arterial Mandan 0.3 5870 (2022) Land development in this area increases and will increase traffic counts.
2 27th Street N Sunset Drive Hwy 1806 Collector Minor Arterial Mandan 1 2,775 Land development in this area increases and will increase traffic counts.
3 13th Ave NW Lohstreter Rd 13th Ave NW Collector Local Mandan 0.08 not applicable Remove to reconfigure the collector network and add Lohstreter Rd.
4 6th St NW 13th Ave NW 12th Ave NW Collector Local Mandan 0.15 not applicable Remove to reconfigure the collector network and add Lohstreter Rd.

5 Lohstreter Rd 13th Ave NW Custer Drive Local Collector Mandan 0.25 830 (2019) - 975 (2006)
Traffic counts and geometry favor Lohstreter over the current alignment on 13th Ave/6th St.  Lohstreter is the eventual 

collector for the area, and this adds Lohstreter onto the System.
6 Custer Drive Lohstreter Rd 12th Ave NW Local Collector Mandan 0.3 no data available Closes the loop of Lohstreter Rd
7 12th Ave NW Custer Drive 13th Ave NW Local Collector Mandan 0.08 1450-2205 (2009) Closes the loop of Lohstreter Rd
8 6th Ave NE 1st St NE Main St Local Minor Arterial Mandan 0.11 2,265 Continues 6th Ave NE in a northward direction.  Captures a high volume block in downtown Mandan.
9 8th Ave SE 19th St SE 27th St SE Local Collector Mandan 0.75 1,895 Geometries meet general design for a collector.  Over 700 dwelling unites in this neighborhood

10 27th St SE 8th Ave SE 14th Av SE Local Collector Mandan 0.35 no data available Geometries meet general design for a collector.  Over 700 dwelling unites in this neighborhood
11 14th Ave SE 27th Ave SE 19th St SE Local Collector Mandan 0.71 1060 Geometries meet general design for a collector.  Over 700 dwelling unites in this neighborhood
12 McKenzie Dr 39th Ave SE 34th Ave SE Local Collector Mandan 0.23 1045 Extend classification along McKenzie Dr. More closely aligns with patterns in the neighborhood.
13 34th Ave SE McKenzie Dr 21st St SE Local Collector Mandan 0.4 no data available Extend classification along McKenzie Dr. More closely along with patterns in the neighborhood.
14 21st St SE 34th Ave SE 40th Ave SE Local Collector Mandan 0.6 2075 Extend classification along McKenzie Dr. More closely along with patterns in the neighborhood.
15 19th St SE 40th Ave SE 46th Ave SE Collector Local Mandan 0.5 not applicable Remove as the road does not carry much traffic.

16 Borden Harbor Dr SE Southbay Dr SE Bayshore Bend SE Local Collector Mandan 0.52 1220
Since last reclassification the roads have been functioning more and more like collectors.  Serves a development of over 500 

homes.

17 Bay Shore Bend SE Borden Harbor Dr SE Lakewood Dr SE Local Collector Mandan 0.2 no data available
Since last reclassification the roads have been functioning more and more like collectors.  Serves a development of over 500 

homes.

18 Lakewood Dr SE Bay Shore Bend SE 40th Ave SE Local Collector Mandan 0.42 no data available
Since last reclassification the roads have been functioning more and more like collectors.  Serves a development of over 500 

homes.

19 40th Ave SE Lakewood Dr SE Southbay Dr SE Local Collector Mandan 0.93 565
Since last reclassification the roads have been functioning more and more like collectors.  Serves a development of over 500 

homes.
20 46th Ave SE Memorial Hwy McKenzie Ave SE Collector Minor Arterial Mandan 0.55 3865 - 5835 Roadway functions more as an arterial, not a collector.  Geometry is more similar to an arterial than a collector.

21 Bis-Man Ave Memorial Hwy Twin City Dr Local Collector Mandan 0.37 945 - 1175 (2013)
Roadway collects traffic from the industrial park and Twin City Estates (over 200 dwelling units), and distributes onto Main St 

and Memorial Hwy.

22 Twin City Drive Bis-Man Ave E Main St Local Collector Mandan 1.12 2470 - 2720 (2014)
Roadway collects traffic from the industrial park and Twin City Estates (over 200 dwelling units), and distributes onto Main St 

and Memorial Hwy.
23 REMOVED
24 E Century Ave Centennial Rd Roosevelt Dr Collector Minor Arterial Bismarck 0.55 8955 Land development  and traffic volume increases.  Section functions as a minor arterial, no longer as a collector.
25 Santa Fe Ave S Washington St Boston Dr Local Collector Bismarck 0.62 no data available Land development  and traffic volume increases.  Section functions as a collector, no longer as a local road.
26 Boston Dr Santa Fe Ave Burleigh Ave Local Collector Bismarck 0.82 no data available Land development  and traffic volume increases.  Section functions as a collector, no longer as a local road.

27 Ridgedale St Frontage Road 57th Ave NW 64th Ave N Local Collector Bismarck 0.92 no data available
Frontage Road System along US83. Is within NDDOT ROW.  NDDOT suggests functional classification in the event that future 

road work is needed in conjunction with a project on the US Highway.

28 State Street E Frontage Road Holiday Inn 43rd Ave N Local Collector Bismarck 0.38 445 (2019)
Frontage Road System along US83/State Street. Is within NDDOT ROW.  NDDOT suggests functional classification in the event 

that future road work is needed in conjunction with a project on the US Highway.

29
State Street E/13 St N Frontage 
Road Divide Ave Capitol Ave Local Collector Bismarck 0.46 1225 (2006)

Frontage Road System along US83/State Street. Is within NDDOT ROW.  NDDOT suggests functional classification in the event 
that future road work is needed in conjunction with a project on the US Highway.

30
State Street W/ 12 St N Frontage 
Road - 1 Interchange Ave Capitol Ave Local Collector Bismarck 0.14 1720

Frontage Road System along US83/State Street. Is within NDDOT ROW.  NDDOT suggests functional classification in the event 
that future road work is needed in conjunction with a project on the US Highway.

31
State Street W/ 12 St N Frontage 
Road - 2 Capitol Ave North of Divide Ave/ 12 St N Local Collector Bismarck 0.33 820 (2019)

Frontage Road System along US83/State Street. Is within NDDOT ROW.  NDDOT suggests functional classification in the event 
that future road work is needed in conjunction with a project on the US Highway.

32
Bismarck Expressway South 
Frontage Road System - 1 Portland Dr Laramie Dr Local Collector Bismarck 0.45 140

Frontage Road System along Bismarck Expressway. Is within NDDOT ROW.  NDDOT suggests functional classification in the 
event that future road work is needed in conjunction with a project on the State System.

33
Bismarck Expressway South 
Frontage Road System - 2 Bozeman Dr S 7th St Local Collector Bismarck 0.4 430

Frontage Road System along Bismarck Expressway. Is within NDDOT ROW.  NDDOT suggests functional classification in the 
event that future road work is needed in conjunction with a project on the State System.

34 S 7th Street Bismarck Expressway Denver Ave Local Collector Bismarck 0.3 2500 - 2910 (2014)

Needed to complete classification of the Frontage Road System along Bismarck Expressway. Frontage road is within NDDOT 
ROW.  NDDOT suggests functional classification in the event that future road work is needed in conjunction with a project on 

the State System.

35 Industrial Dr Frontage Road WAPA Miriam Dr Local Collector Bismarck 1.27 1530 (2009)
Frontage Road System along Bismarck Expressway. Is within NDDOT ROW.  NDDOT suggests functional classification in the 

event that future road work is needed in conjunction with a project on the State System.

36 Miriam Dr Interchange Ave Bismarck Expressway Local Collector Bismarck 0.04 2205

Needed to complete classification of the Frontage Road System along Bismarck Expressway. Frontage road is within NDDOT 
ROW.  NDDOT suggests functional classification in the event that future road work is needed in conjunction with a project on 

the State System.

37 American Dr University Dr Basin Ave Local Collector Bismarck 0.01 310

Needed to complete classification of the Frontage Road System along Bismarck Expressway. Frontage road is within NDDOT 
ROW.  NDDOT suggests functional classification in the event that future road work is needed in conjunction with a project on 

the State System.

38 Basin Ave Frontage Rd American Dr Airport Ave Local Collector Bismarck 0.83 no data available
Frontage Road System along Bismarck Expressway. Is within NDDOT ROW.  NDDOT suggests functional classification in the 

event that future road work is needed in conjunction with a project on the State System.
39 Old Red Trail 2013 UZA Boundary 2023 UZA Boundary Local Minor Arterial Morton County 0.42 630 Extension to meet new UZA boundary

40 McKenzie Dr 39th Ave SE 40th Ave SE Minor arterial Collector Mandan 0.13 1045
The minor arterial was a stub.  We are requesting this roadway be demoted to collector to better align with traffic patterns.  

Further sections of McKenzie are being requested to be a collector, see number  12.

41 Baretta St Sunset Drive Hwy 1806 Local Collector Mandan 1 no data available
Matches the FARMP alignment.  New subdivision being built.  Mandan said the roads will b e constructed by the time 2024 FC 

is approved. 

42 8th Ave NW 27th St N Baretta St Local Collector Mandan 0.5 385
Matches the FARMP alignment.  New subdivision being built.  Mandan said the roads will b e constructed by the time 2024 FC 

is approved. 

43 12th St NW 27th St N Baretta St Local Collector Mandan 0.5 no data available
Matches the FARMP alignment.  New subdivision being built.  Mandan said the roads will b e constructed by the time 2024 FC 

is approved. 

44 Sunset Drive 27th St N Baretta St Local Collector Mandan 0.5 no data available
Matches the FARMP alignment.  New subdivision being built.  Mandan said the roads will b e constructed by the time 2024 FC 

is approved. 

FINAL DRAFT  Requested Changes: May 2024 
 BMMPO Functional Class Update

https://gis.dot.nd.gov/external/ge_html/?viewer=ext_transinfo


Proposed Changes to the Rural and State Functional Classification Systems - Corresponding to Chagnes in the 2023 UZA Boundary

101 ND 1804/ 71st Ave 2013 UZA Boundary 2023 UZA Boundary Urban Minor Arterial
Rural Collector (or another designation 

requested by the State) NDDOT 3.89 1670-3570 Removing from Urban and adding to Rural/State  Highway System.  UZA boundary change.  MPO is submitting request.

102 River Road 2023 UZA Boundary Burnt Creek Lp Urban Collector
Rural Collector (or another designation 

requested by the County) Burleigh 1.12 1,495 Removing from Urban and adding to Rural system.  UZA boundary change.  Burleigh County will submit a follow-up request.

103 Burnt Creek Rd River Rd US 1804/ 71st Ave Urban Collector
Rural Collector (or another designation 

requested by the County) Burleigh 0.08 no data available Removing from Urban and adding to Rural system.  UZA boundary change.  Burleigh County will submit a follow-up request.

104 Tyler Parkway 2023 UZA Boundary US 1804/ 71st Ave Urban Minor Arterial
Rural Collector (or another designation 

requested by the County) Burleigh 0.35 1,050 Removing from Urban and adding to Rural system.  UZA boundary change.  Burleigh County will submit a follow-up request.

105 REMOVED:  Sonora Way

106 US 83 (N Bound) 2023 UZA Boundary 2013 UZA Boundary Urban Principle Arterial
Rural Principle Arterial (or another 

designation requested by the State) NDDOT 1.3 11,190 Removing from Urban and adding to Rural/State  Highway System.  UZA boundary change.  MPO is submitting request.

107 US 83 (S Bound) 2023 UZA Boundary 2013 UZA Boundary Urban Principle Arterial
Rural Principle Arterial (or another 

designation requested by the State) NDDOT 1.3 11,190 Removing from Urban and adding to Rural/State  Highway System.  UZA boundary change.  MPO is submitting request.

108 Lincoln Rd 2023 UZA Boundary 80th Street Urban Collector
Rural Collector (or another designation 

requested by the County) Burleigh 0.35 210 Removing from Urban and adding to Rural system.  UZA boundary change.  Burleigh County will submit a follow-up request.

109 ND 1804/ University Dr 2023 UZA Boundary Sentinel St Urban Minor Arterial
Rural Collector (or another designation 

requested by the State) NDDOT 2.6 5500 (2015) - 6755 (2019) Removing from Urban and adding to Rural/State  Highway System.  UZA boundary change.  MPO is submitting request.

201 ND 1806 N 2023 UZA Boundary 2013 UZA Boundary Urban Principal Arterial 
Rural Collector (or another designation 

requested by the State) NDDOT 4.17 3220 Removing from Urban and adding to Rural system.  UZA boundary change.  Burleigh County will submit a follow-up request.

202 ND 1806 S 2023 UZA Boundary 2013 UZA Boundary Urban Principal Arterial 
Rural Principle Arterial (or another 

designation requested by the State) NDDOT 0.31 2475 Removing from Urban and adding to Rural/State  Highway System.  UZA boundary change.  MPO is submitting request.

203 ND 6 2023 UZA Boundary 2013 UZA Boundary Urban Principal Arterial 
Rural Principal Arterial (or another 

designation requested by the State) NDDOT 1.8 2635 Removing from Urban and adding to Rural/State  Highway System.  UZA boundary change.  MPO is submitting request.

204 Old Red Trail/ Co Rd 139A 2023 UZA Boundary State Hwy 25 Local 
Rural Collector (or another designation 

requested by the State) NDDOT 1.38 590 Adding to the Rural/State Highway System to complete the functional classification of Old Red Trail on the Urban System



 

 

 

 

 

ITEM 
 

 

 

 

# 9 











 

 

 

 

 

ITEM 
 

 

 

 

# 10 



Burleigh County Finance Department 
316 N 5th St Ste 104  Leigh Jacobs, CPA 
Bismarck, ND 58501  Finance Director 
(701) 712-8353 

 
 
 
 
DATE: June 17, 2024 

 
TO: Burleigh County Commission 

 
FROM: Leigh Jacobs, Burleigh County Finance Director 

 
RE: BMDC Sales Tax Bond Defeasance 
  

 
REQUESTS 

1. Select which quarter to defease the BMDC Sales Tax Bond.  
2. Approve staff to take the following steps to defease BMDC Sales Tax Bond: 

a. Liquidate current surplus fund investments. 
b. Retain a bidding agent to select treasuries to fund escrow account.  
c. Retain a verification agent to verify that the purchased treasuries will provide 

adequate cash flow for future bond payments. 
d. Work with Colliers Securities and bond counsel to fulfill any other obligations of 

defeasance.   
 
BACKGROUND 
NOTE: The figures used for the following calculations contain estimates. Changes in future sales tax 
collections or US Treasury rates could alter the final amounts.  
 
Burleigh County is required to continue collections of the half-cent sales tax until the outstanding 
BMDC Sales Tax Bonds are either paid off (Earliest Call Date: November 2025) or defeased. The 
bond is considered defeased when we have deposited funds in escrow that all parties agree will be 
sufficient to make future payments on the bond. The escrow deposit will be less than the total 
outstanding balance on the bonds because we are allowed to deposit US Treasuries that will earn 
enough interest to make future payments.  
 
Researching bond defeasance, we learned that the County may choose the timing of the future bond 
payments in escrow – either at earliest maturity or at any point thereafter. While typically the bonds 
are paid at the earliest call date (2025), due to the current interest rates it is advantageous to continue 
to make payments until the maturity date (2032). Making payments until the maturity date rather 
than the earliest call date is estimated to save Burleigh County over $2,000,000. Likewise, Morton 
County will experience a significant savings. 
 



Burleigh County Finance Department 
316 N 5th St Ste 104  Leigh Jacobs, CPA 
Bismarck, ND 58501  Finance Director 
(701) 712-8353 

 
 

 
 
 
 
The ND Tax Department requires us to give notice to end sales tax collections before the end of a 
calendar quarter, with collections ceasing at the end of the subsequent quarter. Colliers advised us 
that we should begin the defeasance process at least 60 days before we plan to give notice to the tax 
department. Burleigh County has already collected our share of the defeasance. Morton County is 
estimated to collect their share with the September sales tax deposit. If Burleigh County wishes to 
give notice to the Tax Department by September 30, we are advised to start the defeasance process 
on August 1.  As of that date, Morton County will owe an estimated $300,000.  
 
If Morton chooses not to deposit additional cash into escrow, Burleigh can deposit on their behalf or 
can wait until Morton collects sufficient funds – likely in September. Waiting means Burleigh 
County would forgo an additional three months of collections from the recently passed 1 cent sales 
tax, reducing total sales tax collections by nearly $3,000,000. Another potential downside of waiting 
is interest rate risk, which is the risk that a change in interest rates adversely affects one’s financial 
position. For each quarter percentage point decrease in US Treasury yields, Burleigh County’s 
escrow cost increases by over $250,000. 
 

 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Costs of defeasance estimated at less than $50,000. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

1. Colliers Defeasance Estimate 
2. Finance Department Defeasance Workpaper 



 

 

Burleigh County, North Dakota 
Multi-County Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds Taxable Series 2020 
Defeasance Analysis 
Escrow to November 2032 Maturity 

Sources & Uses 
 Dated 10/15/2024 |  Delivered 10/15/2024

Sources Of Funds 
Total Cash Contribution 31,383,488.50
Debt Service Reserve Funds on Deposit 5,155,292.21
Excess Sales Tax from Ongoing Collections 3,595,233.62
 
Total Sources $40,134,014.33
 
Uses Of Funds 
Total Cost of Investments 40,134,014.33
 
Total Uses $40,134,014.33

Defease Burleigh Co Serie  |  SINGLE PURPOSE  |  5/ 6/2024  |  10:43 AM

Colliers Securities LLC
Public Finance Page 1

 



 

 

$53,120,000 
Burleigh County, North Dakota 
Multi-County Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds Taxable Series 2020 

Debt Service To Maturity And To Call 

Date
Refunded 

Bonds
Refunded 

Interest D/S To Call Principal Coupon Interest Refunded D/S
10/15/2024 - - - - - - -
11/01/2024 3,145,000.00 441,860.00 3,586,860.00 3,145,000.00 1.150% 441,860.00 3,586,860.00
05/01/2025 - 423,776.25 423,776.25 - - 423,776.25 423,776.25
11/01/2025 4,175,000.00 423,776.25 4,598,776.25 4,175,000.00 1.300% 423,776.25 4,598,776.25
05/01/2026 - 396,638.75 396,638.75 - - 396,638.75 396,638.75
11/01/2026 4,225,000.00 396,638.75 4,621,638.75 4,225,000.00 1.500% 396,638.75 4,621,638.75
05/01/2027 - 364,951.25 364,951.25 - - 364,951.25 364,951.25
11/01/2027 4,290,000.00 364,951.25 4,654,951.25 4,290,000.00 1.700% 364,951.25 4,654,951.25
05/01/2028 - 328,486.25 328,486.25 - - 328,486.25 328,486.25
11/01/2028 4,365,000.00 328,486.25 4,693,486.25 4,365,000.00 2.050% 328,486.25 4,693,486.25
05/01/2029 - 283,745.00 283,745.00 - - 283,745.00 283,745.00
11/01/2029 4,455,000.00 283,745.00 4,738,745.00 4,455,000.00 2.200% 283,745.00 4,738,745.00
05/01/2030 - 234,740.00 234,740.00 - - 234,740.00 234,740.00
11/01/2030 4,550,000.00 234,740.00 4,784,740.00 4,550,000.00 2.300% 234,740.00 4,784,740.00
05/01/2031 - 182,415.00 182,415.00 - - 182,415.00 182,415.00
11/01/2031 4,655,000.00 182,415.00 4,837,415.00 4,655,000.00 2.422% 182,415.00 4,837,415.00
05/01/2032 - 126,046.25 126,046.25 - - 126,046.25 126,046.25
11/01/2032 9,790,000.00 126,046.25 9,916,046.25 9,790,000.00 2.575% 126,046.25 9,916,046.25

Total $43,650,000.00 $5,123,457.50 $48,773,457.50 $43,650,000.00 - $5,123,457.50 $48,773,457.50

Yield Statistics 
 
Base date for Avg. Life & Avg. Coupon Calculation 10/15/2024
Average Life 4.705 Years
Average Coupon 2.2986605%
Weighted Average Maturity (Par Basis) 4.705 Years
Weighted Average Maturity (Original Price Basis) 4.701 Years
 
Refunding Bond Information 
 
Refunding Dated Date 10/15/2024
Refunding Delivery Date 10/15/2024

Burleigh County Series 20  |  SINGLE PURPOSE  |  5/ 6/2024  |  10:43 AM

Colliers Securities LLC
Public Finance Page 2

 



 

 

Burleigh County, North Dakota 
Multi-County Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds Taxable Series 2020 
Defeasance Analysis 
Escrow to November 2032 Maturity 

Escrow Fund Cashflow 

Date Principal Rate Interest Receipts Disbursements Cash Balance
10/15/2024 - - - 916.12 - 916.12
10/31/2024 3,127,000.00 2.250% 458,953.14 3,585,953.14 - 3,586,869.26
11/01/2024 - - - - 3,586,860.00 9.26
04/30/2025 - - 423,774.39 423,774.39 - 423,783.65
05/01/2025 - - - - 423,776.25 7.40
10/31/2025 4,175,000.00 3.246% 423,774.39 4,598,774.39 - 4,598,781.79
11/01/2025 - - - - 4,598,776.25 5.54
04/30/2026 41,000.00 0.750% 356,021.89 397,021.89 - 397,027.43
05/01/2026 - - - - 396,638.75 388.68
10/31/2026 4,266,000.00 1.125% 355,868.14 4,621,868.14 - 4,622,256.82
11/01/2026 - - - - 4,621,638.75 618.07
04/30/2027 33,000.00 0.500% 331,871.89 364,871.89 - 365,489.96
05/01/2027 - - - - 364,951.25 538.71
10/31/2027 4,323,000.00 4.125% 331,789.39 4,654,789.39 - 4,655,328.10
11/01/2027 - - - - 4,654,951.25 376.85
04/30/2028 86,000.00 1.250% 242,627.51 328,627.51 - 329,004.36
05/01/2028 - - - - 328,486.25 518.11
10/31/2028 4,451,000.00 1.375% 242,090.01 4,693,090.01 - 4,693,608.12
11/01/2028 - - - - 4,693,486.25 121.87
04/30/2029 73,000.00 2.875% 211,489.38 284,489.38 - 284,611.25
05/01/2029 - - - - 283,745.00 866.25
10/31/2029 4,528,000.00 4.000% 210,440.00 4,738,440.00 - 4,739,306.25
11/01/2029 - - - - 4,738,745.00 561.25
04/30/2030 116,000.00 3.500% 119,880.00 235,880.00 - 236,441.25
05/01/2030 - - - - 234,740.00 1,701.25
10/31/2030 4,666,000.00 4.875% 117,850.00 4,783,850.00 - 4,785,551.25
11/01/2030 - - - - 4,784,740.00 811.25
04/30/2031 178,000.00 4.625% 4,116.25 182,116.25 - 182,927.50
05/01/2031 - - - - 182,415.00 512.50
08/15/2031 4,837,000.00 - - 4,837,000.00 - 4,837,512.50
11/01/2031 - - - - 4,837,415.00 97.50
02/15/2032 126,000.00 - - 126,000.00 - 126,097.50
05/01/2032 - - - - 126,046.25 51.25
08/15/2032 9,916,000.00 - - 9,916,000.00 - 9,916,051.25
11/01/2032 - - - - 9,916,046.25 5.00

Total $44,942,000.00 - $3,830,546.38 $48,773,462.50 $48,773,457.50 -

Investment Parameters 
 
Investment Model [PV, GIC, or Securities] Securities
Default investment yield target Unrestricted
 
 
Cash Deposit 916.12
Cost of Investments Purchased with Bond Proceeds 40,133,098.21
Total Cost of Investments $40,134,014.33
 
Target Cost of Investments at bond yield $48,773,457.50
Actual positive or (negative) arbitrage 8,639,443.17
 
Yield to Receipt 4.5504778%
Yield for Arbitrage Purposes -
Defease Burleigh Co Serie  |  SINGLE PURPOSE  |  5/ 6/2024  |  10:43 AM

Colliers Securities LLC
Public Finance Page 3

 



 

 

Burleigh County, North Dakota 
Multi-County Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds Taxable Series 2020 
Defeasance Analysis 
Escrow to November 2032 Maturity 

Escrow Summary Cost 

Maturity Type Coupon Yield $ Price Par Amount Principal Cost
+Accrued 

Interest  =   Total Cost
Escrow

10/31/2024 T-NOTE 2.250% 5.334% 99.8593750% 3,127,000 3,122,602.66 32,119.73 3,154,722.39
10/31/2025 T-NOTE 0.250% 4.969% 95.2656250% 1,542,000 1,468,995.94 1,759.89 1,470,755.83
10/31/2025 T-NOTE 5.000% 4.966% 100.0312500% 2,633,000 2,633,822.81 60,101.09 2,693,923.90
04/30/2026 T-NOTE 0.750% 4.817% 94.0156250% 41,000 38,546.41 140.38 38,686.79
10/31/2026 T-NOTE 1.125% 4.716% 93.0781250% 4,266,000 3,970,712.81 21,909.62 3,992,622.43
04/30/2027 T-NOTE 0.500% 4.637% 90.1875000% 33,000 29,761.88 75.33 29,837.21
10/31/2027 T-NOTE 4.125% 4.614% 98.6250000% 4,323,000 4,263,558.75 81,408.67 4,344,967.42
04/30/2028 T-NOTE 1.250% 4.568% 89.2500000% 86,000 76,755.00 490.76 77,245.76
10/31/2028 T-NOTE 1.375% 4.536% 88.4375000% 4,451,000 3,936,353.13 27,939.70 3,964,292.83
04/30/2029 T-NOTE 2.875% 4.517% 93.3281250% 73,000 68,129.53 958.13 69,087.66
10/31/2029 T-NOTE 4.000% 4.513% 97.7031250% 4,528,000 4,423,997.50 82,685.22 4,506,682.72
04/30/2030 T-NOTE 3.500% 4.505% 95.1093750% 116,000 110,326.88 1,853.48 112,180.36
10/31/2030 T-NOTE 4.875% 4.509% 101.9218750% 4,666,000 4,755,674.69 103,843.86 4,859,518.55
04/30/2031 T-NOTE 4.625% 4.501% 100.6875000% 178,000 179,223.75 3,758.32 182,982.07
08/15/2031 STRIPS-I - 4.523% 73.6630000% 4,837,000 3,563,079.31 - 3,563,079.31
02/15/2032 STRIPS-I - 4.524% 72.0290000% 126,000 90,756.54 - 90,756.54
08/15/2032 STRIPS-I - 4.529% 70.4090000% 9,916,000 6,981,756.44 - 6,981,756.44

Subtotal - - - $44,942,000 $39,714,054.03 $419,044.18 $40,133,098.21
Total - - - $44,942,000 $39,714,054.03 $419,044.18 $40,133,098.21

Escrow 
Cash Deposit 916.12
Cost of Investments Purchased with Bond Proceeds 40,133,098.21
Total Cost of Investments $40,134,014.33
 
 
Delivery Date 10/15/2024

Defease Burleigh Co Serie  |  SINGLE PURPOSE  |  5/ 6/2024  |  10:43 AM

Colliers Securities LLC
Public Finance Page 4

 



 

 

$53,120,000 
Burleigh County, North Dakota 
Multi-County Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds Taxable Series 2020 

Total Refunded Debt Service 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I
11/01/2024 3,145,000.00 1.150% 441,860.00 3,586,860.00
11/01/2025 4,175,000.00 1.300% 847,552.50 5,022,552.50
11/01/2026 4,225,000.00 1.500% 793,277.50 5,018,277.50
11/01/2027 4,290,000.00 1.700% 729,902.50 5,019,902.50
11/01/2028 4,365,000.00 2.050% 656,972.50 5,021,972.50
11/01/2029 4,455,000.00 2.200% 567,490.00 5,022,490.00
11/01/2030 4,550,000.00 2.300% 469,480.00 5,019,480.00
11/01/2031 4,655,000.00 2.422% 364,830.00 5,019,830.00
11/01/2032 9,790,000.00 2.575% 252,092.50 10,042,092.50

Total $43,650,000.00 - $5,123,457.50 $48,773,457.50

Yield Statistics 
 
Base date for Avg. Life & Avg. Coupon Calculation 10/15/2024
Average Life 4.705 Years
Average Coupon 2.2986605%
Weighted Average Maturity (Par Basis) 4.705 Years
Weighted Average Maturity (Original Price Basis) 4.701 Years
 
Refunding Bond Information 
 
Refunding Dated Date 10/15/2024
Refunding Delivery Date 10/15/2024

Burleigh County Series 20  |  SINGLE PURPOSE  |  5/ 6/2024  |  10:43 AM

Colliers Securities LLC
Public Finance Page 5

 





 

Amount needed to defease bond $ 40,134,014.00   <<---This number came from John at Colliers

less shared Reserve Fund 5,155,331.18     

less shared Debt Service Fund 3,597,065.71     

Amount to split between counties 31,381,617.11   

Burleigh 83.32% 26,147,163.38   

Morton 16.68% $ 5,234,453.73     

  



BURLEIGH MORTON

29,533,222.54$    4,576,403.65$    

26,147,163.38       5,234,453.73       

Amount needed to defease as of 5/31/2024,
(3,386,059.16)$     658,050.08$        

BURLEIGH MORTON
Amount needed to Amount needed to 

Receipt Collection defease, Burleigh defease, Morton
Quarter Quarter Receipt Month Collection Month Burleigh Morton (3,386,059.16)               658,050.08                  

Q2 Q2 6/22/2024 4/30/2024 936,128.60      180,232.01          ACTUAL (UNPAID) (4,322,187.76)               477,818.07                  
Q3 Q2 7/24/2024 5/31/2024 987,741.14      175,329.29          ESTIMATE (5,309,928.90)               302,488.78                  
Q3 Q2 8/21/2024 6/30/2024 1,095,716.25   218,445.94          ESTIMATE (6,405,645.15)               84,042.84                    
Q3 Q3 9/22/2024 7/31/2024 1,021,130.79   200,682.44          ESTIMATE (7,426,775.94)               (116,639.60)                 
Q4 Q3 10/20/2024 8/31/2024 716,756.35      159,377.07          ESTIMATE (8,143,532.29)               (276,016.67)                 
Q4 Q3 11/22/2024 9/30/2024 1,366,765.51   235,014.56          ESTIMATE (9,510,297.80)               (511,031.23)                 
Q4 Q4 12/21/2024 10/31/2024 950,487.81      181,875.96          ESTIMATE (10,460,785.61)             (692,907.19)                 
Q1 Q4 1/21/2025 11/31/2024 700,759.27      127,606.44          ESTIMATE (11,161,544.88)             (820,513.62)                 
Q1 Q4 2/21/2025 12/31/2024 1,405,633.01   248,832.50          ESTIMATE (12,567,177.89)             (1,069,346.13)             
Q1 Q1 3/21/2025 1/31/2025 922,938.59      158,318.59          ESTIMATE (13,490,116.48)             (1,227,664.71)             
Q2 Q1 4/21/2025 2/28/2025 488,370.25      103,451.54          ESTIMATE (13,978,486.73)             (1,331,116.25)             
Q2 Q1 5/21/2025 3/30/2025 1,191,610.09   227,088.66          ESTIMATE (15,170,096.82)             (1,558,204.91)             

Sales Tax Receipts, Historical

Balance 5/31/2024 (cash basis)

Defeasance amount, less debt service & reserve

net of debt service and reserve funds

 

 



Burleigh County Finance Department 
316 N 5th St Ste 104  Leigh Jacobs, CPA 
Bismarck, ND 58501  Finance Director 
(701) 712-8353 

 
 
 
 
DATE: 06/17/2024 

 
TO: Burleigh County Commission 

 
FROM: Leigh Jacobs, Burleigh County Finance Director 

 
RE: County Jail Maintenance Fund Info 
  

 
BACKGROUND 
The County Jail Maintenance Fund is a special revenue fund that has served multiple purposes since 
its creation. Monies used for maintenance of the old jail, renovation of the old jail, construction of the 
BMDC, and maintenance of the BMDC have all flowed through this account. As of 05/31/2024 there 
is a balance of $2,883,812.28 of assets in this account.  
 
The assets in the account come from multiple historical sources of revenue. In recent years we have 
been using those assets to cover our annual commitment to BMDC Capital Improvement Fund per 
the 2017 JPA. This JPA requires Burleigh County to set aside $255,000 per year and Morton County 
to set aside $45,000. Accordingly, we are responsible for 85% of capital improvements, and Morton is 
responsible for 15%.  
 
The BMDC Capital Improvement Fund is comingled with the remaining funds from the “old” 
maintenance fund. After accounting for our annual commitments, expenses, and reimbursements 
from Morton County, the BMDC Capital Improvement Fund’s balance as of 05/31/2024 is 
$1,609,217.54 This leaves a remaining balance of $1,274,594.75 of unallocated funds.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 

1. Jail Maintenance and Construction Fund Balance Allocation 
2. 2017 BMDC JPA 



JPA Ledger 01/01/2018 - 05/31/2024
Date Description Amount

1/1/2018 Annual Burleigh JPA Responsibility 255,000.00        
1/1/2019 Annual Burleigh JPA Responsibility 255,000.00        
1/1/2020 Annual Burleigh JPA Responsibility 255,000.00        
1/1/2021 Annual Burleigh JPA Responsibility 255,000.00        
1/1/2022 Annual Burleigh JPA Responsibility 255,000.00        

12/19/2022 Progress billing for MAU equipment (25,000.00)         
12/19/2022 Morton Share - Progress billing for MAU equipment 3,750.00            

1/1/2023 Annual Burleigh JPA Responsibility 255,000.00        
1/17/2023 Invoice #24580 (55,000.00)         
1/17/2023 Morton Share - Invoice #24580 8,250.00            

8/4/2023 Wired new make up air unit (7,161.00)           
8/4/2023 Morton Share - Wired new make up air unit 1,074.15            

8/25/2023 Invoice #25784 (18,918.00)         
8/24/2023 Morton Share - Invoice #25784 2,837.70            

11/30/2023 Mount,add new controller (6,100.00)           
9/8/2023 Morton Share - Mount,add new controller 915.00                
1/1/2024 Annual Burleigh JPA Responsibility 255,000.00        

2/16/2024 Cooling Tower (70,660.00)         
2/16/2024 Morton Share Cooling Tower 10,599.00          
5/31/2024 Heat Exchanger (17,350.00)         
5/31/2024 Morton Share Heat Exchanger 2,602.50            
5/31/2024 Replacement Glass (6,613.90)           
5/31/2024 Morton Share Replacemetn Glass 992.09                
5/31/2024 JPA Agreement Burleigh Fund Balance 1,609,217.54    

Fund 2985 Fund Balance Allocation 04/30/2024
Amount

5/31/2024 Cash Balance 1,775,533.75    
5/31/2024 Investment Balance 1,108,278.53    
5/31/2024 Intergovernment Receivable -                      
5/31/2024 Fund Balance 05/31/2024 2,883,812.28    
5/31/2024 Less: JPA Agreement Burleigh Fund Balance (1,609,217.54)   
5/31/2024 Fund 2985 Non-Allocated Fund Balance 1,274,594.75    

Description

 



 

 

 

 

 

ITEM 
 

 

 

 

# 11 

















 

 

 

 

 

COUNTY 
 

 

 

 

WEED 
BOARD 



 
 
 
 
 
 

Request for County Board Action 
 
DATE: 6/17/2024          
   
TO:  Burleigh County Weed Board 
  
FROM: Mark Splonskowski  
 
   
ITEM: Herbicide and Chemical applicator bids.  
 
 
REQUEST: On June 10th, the County opened bids for herbicides as well as a Chemical applicator. 
We received three bids for chemicals and one bid for application services. Please advise staff on how 
you wish to proceed.  

 


	Aa complete packet.pdf
	Aa complete packet.pdf
	June 17, 2024
	May 31st 2024 Special Meeting Minutes
	June 3rd 2024 Minutes
	Consent BC Check Replacement - Casey Sorch
	Abatement letter June 17, 2024
	Sheet1

	Consent Northern Lights Council, BSA_Redacted
	Consent TRI-ENERGY CENEX - STERLING_Redacted
	Consent APPLE CREEK COUNTRY CLUB_Redacted
	#7
	Mitch 1 Appeal of Complaint Form CF 111
	Mitch 1-2
	Mitch 1-3
	Mitch 1-4
	Mitch 1-5
	Mitch 2 Memo Fleck Subdivision_final
	Mitch 2-1
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	Mitch 2-2
	Mitch 2-3
	Mitch 3 Ex. 1 Riverside 3rd Subdivision_Final Plat
	Mitch 3-1
	Mitch 4-1 Memo_ Peaceful View Final Subdivision
	Mitch 4-2 Ex. 1 Peaceful View Final Plat  05-14-2024
	Mitch 4-3 Ex. 2 Peaceful View Sub._site location
	#8
	Rachel 1 BurleighCC_BMMPO 2024 Functional Class Update Memo_June 2024
	Rachel 2 2024 FC Changes_Final Submission_11x17
	Final Submission_May 2024
	2024 FC Changes_Final Submission_Rural and State_11x17.pdf
	Final Submission_May 2024


	Rachel 3 2024 FC Changes_Final Submission_8.5x11
	Final Submission_May 2024
	2024 FC Changes_Final Submission_Rural and State_8.5x11.pdf
	Final Submission_May 2024


	#9
	Hall underground easement request
	#10
	Leigh 1.1 6.17.24 Burleigh Commission Agenda Packet Finance Sales Tax Bond
	06.17.2024 Agenda Item Memo - BMDC Sales Tax Bond Defeasance
	Agenda packet 6.13.24 pages 2 and 3
	BND Bond May Statement
	Defease Burleigh Co Series 2020A 5 6 24 TO MAT
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5


	Leigh 1.2 6.17.24 Agenda Packet Finance Jail Maintenance
	BMDC page 1
	BMDC Page 2

	#11
	CROSSROAD TAVERN - NEW_Redacted

	County Weed Board

	Weed board



